
Thursday, December 1, 2016

1:30 PM

SEMINOLE COUNTY GOVERNMENT

COUNTY SERVICES BUILDING

1101 EAST FIRST STREET 

SANFORD, FLORIDA 32771-1468

BCC Chambers

Code Enforcement Board

Meeting Minutes (Final) - Final



December 1, 2016Code Enforcement Board Meeting Minutes (Final) - Final

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALLI

The scheduled meeting of the Seminole County Code Enforcement Board was 

called to order at 1:30 p.m. in the Seminole County Services Building, Room 

1028, 1101 East First Street, Sanford, Florida.

A quorom was present.

Others present: 

Yvette Brown - Code Enforcement Board Attorney

Tammy Brushwood - Office Supervisor

Patt Hughes - Clerk to the Code Enforcement Board

Chairman Russ Hauck, Dennis Warren, Donald Peterson, Amy Guilfoyle, 

James Vickaryous, and Robert Young

Present 6 - 

Mike BassExcused 1 - 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCEII

SWEARING IN OF WITNESSESIII

Taylor Meyers, Respondent - Case 16-88-CEB

Vivienne & Rupert Davis - on behalf of Shane J. Davis, Respondent, Case 

16-92-CEB

Mary E. Baker , Respondent - 16-93-CEB & 16-94-CEB

Scott Smith, Respondent - Case 16-95-CEB

Mr. Faidy - on behalf of JT Hucent, Respondent - Case 16-97-CEB

APPROVAL OF REVISED AGENDA

(Respondents present & Lien Request items for discussion)

IV

The published agenda was revised to allow Respondents and witnesses 

present at today’s hearing to be heard first.  The remaining cases would then 

be heard in the order originally published.

Aye: Chairman Russ Hauck, Dennis Warren, Donald Peterson, Amy Guilfoyle, 

James Vickaryous, and Robert Young

6 - 

Excused: Mike Bass1 - 

HEARINGS -V

16-88-CEB 

New

TAYLOR M. MEYERS

1050 DRUID DR., MAITLAND, FL 32751

(Commission District 3)

Tax Parcel ID # 24-21-29-507-0C00-0060

Code Enforcement Officer:  Dorothy Hird

Page 1SEMINOLE COUNTY GOVERNMENT



December 1, 2016Code Enforcement Board Meeting Minutes (Final) - Final

Violation:  

1.  Seminole County Code, Chapter 95, Sec. 95.4, as defined in Sec. 95.3 (p)

It shall be unlawful for any person to accumulate, dump or cause or allow to 

be accumulated or dumped or cause or allow to be placed, or otherwise to 

cause or allow to exist on any lands or premises any nuisance as defined in 

Section 95.3 (p) - Any other objectionable, unsightly, or unsanitary matter, 

substance, or material tending by its existence and/or accumulation to 

endanger or adversely affect the health, safety, lives, and/or welfare of the 

citizens of the county.

Dorothy Hird, Code Enforcement Officer was present, and testified on behalf of the 

County.  Officer Hird entered into evidence photographs of the violation, a dead tree, 

and testified that the violation remains on the property.  Officer Hird presented an email 

from an arborist stating that the tree is dead.

Taylor Meyers, Respondent, was present and testified.  She stated that she is not 

living at the property and has arranged for someone to look at the tree and give her an 

estimate on removing it.  She does feel she can comply within the time frame 

requested by Officer Hird.

MOTION BY DENNIS WARREN, SECONDED BY DON PETERSON, TO FIND THAT 

THERE WAS A VIOLATION OF THE STATED CODE.  THE BOARD ORDERED THAT 

THE RESPONDENT SHALL CORRECT THE VIOLATION ON OR BEFORE 

DECEMBER 31, 2016; AND IF THE RESPONDENT DOES NOT COMPLY WITH THIS 

ORDER, A FINE OF $200.00 PER DAY WILL BE IMPOSED THEREAFTER.  The 

motion CARRIED by the following vote:

Aye: Chairman Russ Hauck, Dennis Warren, Donald Peterson, Amy Guilfoyle, 

James Vickaryous, and Robert Young

6 - 

Excused: Mike Bass1 - 

16-93-CEB 

New

MARY A. BAKER HEIRS

120 S CRYSTAL VW, SANFORD, FL 32773

(Commission District 4)

Tax Parcel ID # 03-20-30-511-0000-0080

Code Enforcement Officer:  Vincent Bavaro

Violation:  

1.  Seminole County Code, Chapter 95, Sec. 95.4, as defined in Sec. 95.3 (h)

It shall be unlawful for any person to accumulate, dump or cause or allow to 

be accumulated or dumped or cause or allow to be placed, or otherwise to 

cause or allow to exist on any lands or premises any nuisance as defined in 

Section 95.3 (h) - Any weed growth, grass growth, undergrowth or dead or 

living vegetative matter that is growing in an uncontrolled manner or is not 

regularly maintained, and is in excess of eight (8) inches in height as 

measured from the soil level.

Vincent Bavaro, Code Enforcement Officer was present, and testified on behalf of the 

County.  Officer Bavaro entered into evidence photographs of the violation, and 

testified that the violation remains on the property.  

Mary Ellen Baker, Respondent, is present and testified.  She stated that she is one, 

Page 2SEMINOLE COUNTY GOVERNMENT



December 1, 2016Code Enforcement Board Meeting Minutes (Final) - Final

but not the only heir to the property.  She stated her mother’s estate has not gone 

through probate as of yet.  She stated that due to personal issues she would like to 

request 90 days to comply.  She stated that she did have the property mowed and 

understands this needs to be maintained.

Chairman Russ Hauck asked Officer Bavaro if any notice had been given prior to 

September, since the initial inspection had been in March and Officer Bavaro stated 

that there had been, but he had to re-notice the case due to a change in property 

ownership. 

Officer Bavaro explained to the Respondent that the violation applies to the whole 

property, not just the front or back yards of the property.

Robert Young asked if the house was vacant, and Ms. Baker responded there is 

someone living there.

Jim Vickaryous asked Officer Bavaro when he last inspected the property and he 

responded on November 18, 2016, where he met with the Respondent to discuss the 

violation.  Mr. Vickaryous asked if the violation could be corrected by December 19, 

2016 and Officer Bavaro responded that he has no objections to extending the 

compliance date to give Ms. Baker time to correct the violation.

MOTION BY DENNIS WARREN, SECONDED BY DON PETERSON, TO FIND THAT 

THERE WAS A VIOLATION OF THE STATED CODE.  THE BOARD ORDERED THAT 

THE RESPONDENTS SHALL CORRECT THE VIOLATION ON OR BEFORE 

FEBRUARY 3, 2017; AND IF THE RESPONDENTS DO NOT COMPLY WITH THIS 

ORDER, A FINE OF $50.00 PER DAY WILL BE IMPOSED THEREAFTER.  The 

motion CARRIED by the following vote:

Aye: Chairman Russ Hauck, Dennis Warren, Donald Peterson, Amy Guilfoyle, 

James Vickaryous, and Robert Young

6 - 

Excused: Mike Bass1 - 

16-94-CEB 

New

MARY A. BAKER HEIRS

120 S CRYSTAL VW, SANFORD, FL 32773

(Commission District 4)

Tax Parcel ID # 03-20-30-511-0000-0080

Code Enforcement Officer:  Vincent Bavaro

Violation:  

1.  Seminole County Code, Chapter 95, Sec. 95.4, as defined in Sec. 95.3 (g)

It shall be unlawful for any person to accumulate, dump or cause or allow to 

be accumulated or dumped or cause or allow to be placed, or otherwise to 

cause or allow to exist on any lands or premises any nuisance as defined in 

Section 95.3 (g) - The accumulation of trash and debris.

Vincent Bavaro, Code Enforcement Officer was present, and testified on behalf of the 

County.  Officer Bavaro entered into evidence photographs of the violation, and 

testified that the violation remains on the property.  

Jim Vickaryous asked Officer Bavaro to estimate the number of tires in the pile 

depicted in the pictures presented.  Officer Bavaro stated that he believed it to be 

approximately 10-15 tires.

Page 3SEMINOLE COUNTY GOVERNMENT



December 1, 2016Code Enforcement Board Meeting Minutes (Final) - Final

Mr. Vickaryous asked if there was one (1) or two (2) vehicles on the property as it was 

hard to determine from the pictures and Officer Bavaro stated that there are two (2) 

separate vehicles and that issue will be addressed in the future.

Mary Ellen Baker, Respondent, was present and testified.  She asked that if the 

vehicle has a current tag on it, is it still a violation.  Chairman Russ Hauck explained 

that this would have to be addressed with the Code Enforcement Officer.

Mr. Hauck asked the Respondent if she would need additional time to comply and she 

responded that she would.

MOTION BY DON PETERSON, SECONDED BY DENNIS WARREN, TO FIND THAT 

THERE WAS A VIOLATION OF THE STATED CODE.  THE BOARD ORDERED THAT 

THE RESPONDENTS SHALL CORRECT THE VIOLATION ON OR BEFORE 

FEBRUARY 23, 2017; AND IF THE RESPONDENTS DO NOT COMPLY WITH THIS 

ORDER, A FINE OF $100.00 PER DAY WILL BE IMPOSED THEREAFTER.  The 

motion CARRIED by the following vote:

Aye: Chairman Russ Hauck, Dennis Warren, Donald Peterson, Amy Guilfoyle, 

James Vickaryous, and Robert Young

6 - 

Excused: Mike Bass1 - 

16-95-CEB 

New

SCOTT M. SMITH, MARIANNE SMITH & DONALD C. SMITH

115 S CENTER RD., SANFORD, FL 32771

(Commission District 5)

Tax Parcel ID # 25-19-29-300-005A-0000

Code Enforcement Officer:  Vincent Bavaro

Violation:  

1.  Seminole County Code, Chapter 95, Sec. 95.4, as defined in Sec. 95.3 (g)

It shall be unlawful for any person to accumulate, dump or cause or allow to 

be accumulated or dumped or cause or allow to be placed, or otherwise to 

cause or allow to exist on any lands or premises any nuisance as defined in 

Section 95.3 (g) - The accumulation of trash and debris.

Vincent Bavaro, Code Enforcement Officer was present, and testified on behalf of the 

County.  Officer Bavaro entered into evidence photographs of the violation, and 

testified that the violation remains on the property.  Officer Bavaro stated that he 

spoke with the Respondent this week, and Mr. Smith indicated that he would need 

additional time to correct the violation.

Dennis Warren asked Officer Bavaro if the Respondent had indicated that he would 

need more time than what Officer Bavaro was recommending, and he responded that 

he had.

Chairman Russ Hauck asked if this case was about the trash and debris and not the 

vehicle, and Officer Bavaro stated that was correct.

Scott M. Smith, Respondent, was present and did testify.  He stated that with the 

exception of the construction materials and the paint cans, the tires and the rest of the 

debris is gone.  He stated that the State of Florida has purchased the front of the 

property for the Wekiva Project, and he is just waiting for the money from that sale to 

clean up the rest.  He stated that he is fully aware of what needs to be done and that 

Page 4SEMINOLE COUNTY GOVERNMENT



December 1, 2016Code Enforcement Board Meeting Minutes (Final) - Final

there is no one living on the property, nor will there be.

Mr. Hauck asked Mr. Smith if he felt he could obtain compliance by December 19, 

2016, and he stated he did not think that would be possible.  He stated that as soon 

as he receives the money from the State he will be able to comply.

Jim Vickaryous asked Mr. Smith if the tree debris is from the State, and he responded 

that it was not.  Mr. Smith stated that the fence needs to be moved, and he does not 

have the money to move it, but that if he doesn’t the State will come in and take it 

down.

Mr. Warren asked Officer Bavaro if this case was the result of a complaint or if it was 

noticed while the Officer was driving by, and he replied that it was an on-line complaint.  

Officer Bavaro stated that due to Mr. Smith having to move the fence, he would like to 

extend the recommended compliance date to at least December 31, 2016.

MOTION BY DON PETERSON, SECONDED BY AMY GUILFOYLE, TO FIND THAT 

THERE WAS A VIOLATION OF THE STATED CODE.  THE BOARD ORDERED THAT 

THE RESPONDENTS SHALL CORRECT THE VIOLATION ON OR BEFORE 

JANUARY 26, 2017; AND IF THE RESPONDENTS DO NOT COMPLY WITH THIS 

ORDER, A FINE OF $100.00 PER DAY WILL BE IMPOSED THEREAFTER.   The 

motion CARRIED by the following vote:

Aye: Chairman Russ Hauck, Dennis Warren, Donald Peterson, Amy Guilfoyle, 

James Vickaryous, and Robert Young

6 - 

Excused: Mike Bass1 - 

16-92-CEB 

New

SHANE J. & MELISSA ANN DAVIS

250 LONGWOOD HILLS RD., LONGWOOD, FL 32750

(Commission District 4)

Tax Parcel ID # 29-20-30-5AT-0000-0050

Code Enforcement Officer:  Joann Tamulonis

Violation:  

1.  Seminole County Code, Chapter 95, Sec. 95.4, as defined in Sec. 95.3 (h)

It shall be unlawful for any person to accumulate, dump or cause or allow to 

be accumulated or dumped or cause or allow to be placed, or otherwise to 

cause or allow to exist on any lands or premises any nuisance as defined in 

Section 95.3 (h) - Any weed growth, grass growth, undergrowth or dead or 

living vegetative matter that is growing in an uncontrolled manner or is not 

regularly maintained, and is in excess of eight (8) inches in height as 

measured from the soil level.

Joann Tamulonis, Code Enforcement Officer was present, and testified on behalf of 

the County.  Officer Tamulonis entered into evidence photographs of the violation , and 

testified that the violation remains on the property.  She stated that Officer Bavaro 

posted the Notice of Hearing on the property on her behalf on November 18, 2016, and 

is present to testify if needed.  She stated that there has been some improvement on 

the property and she would like to meet with the Respondent’s father to discuss what 

needs to be done to obtain compliance.

Jim Vickaryous asked Officer Tamulonis if the Respondent was deployed and she 

stated that her understanding is that Shane J. Davis has been deployed, and his father 

Page 5SEMINOLE COUNTY GOVERNMENT



December 1, 2016Code Enforcement Board Meeting Minutes (Final) - Final

is present on his behalf.

Mr. Vickaryous asked Mr. Rupert Davis if his son is deployed, and he responded that 

he is a contractor for the military and is currently out of the country.

Rupert Davis, is present on behalf of the Respondent.  He explained that his son, 

Shane J. Davis is the owner of the property and is currently out of the country on 

business and could not be present.  He stated that he spoke with Officer Bavaro who 

explained there was a small amount of vegetation left to be mowed before compliance 

could be obtained.  

Chairman Russ Hauck asked Mr. Davis if this is a large piece of property and he 

responded that it is almost four (4) acres.  Mr. Hauck asked if he needed clarification 

on what needs to be done for compliance and he responded that he would like to meet 

with Officer Tamulonis to determine what areas need to be mowed.

Officer Bavaro testified that he did speak with Officer Tamulonis to advise her of the 

current state of the violation and that his understanding was that she did speak with 

Mr. Davis.

Don Peterson asked Mr. Davis if he thought he could meet with Officer Tamulonis 

before December 19, 2016, and if so, could he obtain compliance prior to the Code 

Enforcement Board meeting on January 26, 2017, and Mr. Davis stated that he 

believed he could.

Dennis Warren asked Officer Tamulonis if the pictures presented show the current 

state of the violation and she responded the pictures were taken on November 3, 2016, 

and there may have been some improvement since then.

Robert Young asked Officer Bavaro what was the date he had been out there and he 

responded that he was there on November 18, 2016.

MOTION BY DON PETERSON, SECONDED BY ROBERT YOUNG, TO FIND THAT 

THERE WAS A VIOLATION OF THE STATED CODE.  THE BOARD ORDERED THAT 

THE RESPONDENTS SHALL CORRECT THE VIOLATION ON OR BEFORE 

JANUARY26, 2017; AND IF THE RESPONDENTS DO NOT COMPLY WITH THIS 

ORDER, A FINE OF $50.00 PER DAY WILL BE IMPOSED THEREAFTER.  The 

motion CARRIED by the following vote:

Aye: Chairman Russ Hauck, Dennis Warren, Donald Peterson, Amy Guilfoyle, 

James Vickaryous, and Robert Young

6 - 

Excused: Mike Bass1 - 

16-97-CEB 

New

JT HUCENT INC.

237 LAKE VIEW DR., SANFORD, FL 32773

(Commission District 4)

Tax Parcel ID # 04-20-30-506-0500-0070

Code Enforcement Officer:  Vincent Bavaro

Violation:  

1.  Seminole County Code, Chapter 95, Sec. 95.4, as defined in Sec. 95.3 (h)

It shall be unlawful for any person to accumulate, dump or cause or allow to 

be accumulated or dumped or cause or allow to be placed, or otherwise to 

Page 6SEMINOLE COUNTY GOVERNMENT



December 1, 2016Code Enforcement Board Meeting Minutes (Final) - Final

cause or allow to exist on any lands or premises any nuisance as defined in 

Section 95.3 (h) - Any weed growth, grass growth, undergrowth or dead or 

living vegetative matter that is growing in an uncontrolled manner or is not 

regularly maintained, and is in excess of eight (8) inches in height as 

measured from the soil level.

Vincent Bavaro, Code Enforcement Officer was present, and testified on behalf of the 

County.  Officer Bavaro entered into evidence photographs of the violation, and 

testified that the violation remains on the property.

Fuad Faidy is present on behalf of the Respondents, and did testify.  He stated that he 

will do what is necessary to comply and he had no issues with the compliance date 

recommended by Officer Bavaro.

MOTION BY DONALD PETERSON, SECONDED BY AMY GUILFOYLE, TO FIND 

THAT THERE WAS A VIOLATION OF THE STATED CODE.  THE BOARD ORDERED 

THAT THE RESPONDENTS SHALL CORRECT THE VIOLATION ON OR BEFORE 

DECEMBER 19, 2016; AND IF THE RESPONDENTS DO NOT COMPLY WITH THIS 

ORDER, A FINE OF $50.00 PER DAY WILL BE IMPOSED THEREAFTER.  The 

motion CARRIED by the following vote:

Aye: Chairman Russ Hauck, Dennis Warren, Donald Peterson, Amy Guilfoyle, 

James Vickaryous, and Robert Young

6 - 

Excused: Mike Bass1 - 

16-79-CEB 

New

DEBORAH L. ANDERSON

3320 CURTIS DR., APOPKA, FL 32703

(Commission District 3)

Tax Parcel ID # 18-21-29-300-013A-0000

Code Enforcement Officer:  Cara Hill

Violation:  

1.  Seminole County Code, Chapter 95, Sec. 95.4, as defined in Sec. 95.3 (h)

It shall be unlawful for any person to accumulate, dump or cause or allow to 

be accumulated or dumped or cause or allow to be placed, or otherwise to 

cause or allow to exist on any lands or premises any nuisance as defined in 

Section 95.3 (h) - Any weed growth, grass growth, undergrowth or dead or 

living vegetative matter that is growing in an uncontrolled manner or is not 

regularly maintained, and is in excess of eight (8) inches in height as 

measured from the soil level.

Cara Hill, Code Enforcement Officer was present, and testified on behalf of the 

County.  Officer Hill entered into evidence photographs of the violation, and testified 

that the violation on the property has been corrected.  She would like the Board to 

issue the Respondent an Order to refrain from repeating this violation after December 

2, 2016.

Chairman Russ Hauck confirmed with Officer Hill that she is asking the Board to issue 

the Order to prevent a repeat violation and she responded that this is correct.

Code Enforcement Board Attorney Yvette Brown commented to the Board that in 

consideration of due process, the Board may want to consider changing the date to 

December 8, 2016, to allow for the Respondent to be notified. 

Page 7SEMINOLE COUNTY GOVERNMENT



December 1, 2016Code Enforcement Board Meeting Minutes (Final) - Final

Deborah L. Anderson, Respondent was not present at this hearing.

MOTION BY JIM VICKARYOUS, SECONDED BY ROBERT YOUNG, TO FIND THAT 

THERE WAS A VIOLATION OF THE STATED CODE AND THAT THE VIOLATION 

WAS CORRECTED ON OR BEFORE DECEMBER 1, 2016.   THE BOARD FURTHER 

ORDERED THAT IF THE RESPONDENT REPEATS THE VIOLATION AFTER 

DECEMBER 8, 2016, A FINE OF $50.00 PER DAY WILL BEGIN TO ACCRUE FOR 

EACH DAY THE VIOLATION RECURS.  The motion CARRIED by the following 

vote:

Aye: Chairman Russ Hauck, Dennis Warren, Donald Peterson, Amy Guilfoyle, 

James Vickaryous, and Robert Young

6 - 

Excused: Mike Bass1 - 

16-87-CEB 

New

JULIE BAKER TRUSTEE FBO

MARKER ST. & BLAKE ST., ALTAMONTE SPRINGS, FL 32701

(Commission District 4)

Tax Parcel ID # 07-21-30-300-0280-0000

Code Enforcement Officer:  Dorothy Hird

Violation:  

1.  Seminole County Code, Chapter 95, Sec. 95.4, as defined in Sec. 95.3 (h)

It shall be unlawful for any person to accumulate, dump or cause or allow to 

be accumulated or dumped or cause or allow to be placed, or otherwise to 

cause or allow to exist on any lands or premises any nuisance as defined in 

Section 95.3 (h) - Any weed growth, grass growth, undergrowth or dead or 

living vegetative matter that is growing in an uncontrolled manner or is not 

regularly maintained, and is in excess of eight (8) inches in height as 

measured from the soil level.

Dorothy Hird, Code Enforcement Officer was present, and testified on behalf of the 

County.  Officer Hird entered into evidence photographs of the violation, and testified 

that the violation remains on the property.  Officer Hird stated that this is a recurring 

violation on this property.

Julie Baker Trustee, the Respondent, was not present at this hearing.

Don Peterson asked the Yvette Brown, the Code Enforcement Board Attorney, if the 

Board can increase the amount of the fine based on the testimony that this is a 

recurring violation, and she responded that the Board can increase the fine up to 

$250.00.

Jim Vickaryous asked Officer Hird how long has she been notifying the Respondent 

about this issue and she responded that it has been since 2003.

MOTION BY DON PETERSON, SECONDED BY JIM VICKARYOUS, TO FIND THAT 

THERE WAS A VIOLATION OF THE STATED CODE.  THE BOARD ORDERED THAT 

THE RESPONDENT SHALL CORRECT THE VIOLATION ON OR BEFORE 

DECEMBER 16, 2016; AND IF THE RESPONDENT DOES NOT COMPLY WITH THIS 

ORDER, A FINE OF $100.00 PER DAY WILL BE IMPOSED THEREAFTER.  The 

motion CARRIED by the following vote:

Page 8SEMINOLE COUNTY GOVERNMENT



December 1, 2016Code Enforcement Board Meeting Minutes (Final) - Final

Aye: Chairman Russ Hauck, Dennis Warren, Donald Peterson, Amy Guilfoyle, 

James Vickaryous, and Robert Young

6 - 

Excused: Mike Bass1 - 

16-89-CEB 

New

JOSEPH S. BUTLER JR

818 LAKE MARION DR., ALTAMONTE SPRINGS, FL 32701

(Commission District 4)

Tax Parcel ID # 12-21-29-5BD-3800-0270

Code Enforcement Officer:  Dorothy Hird

Violation:  

1.  Seminole County Code, Chapter 95, Sec. 95.4, as defined in Sec. 95.3 (g)

It shall be unlawful for any person to accumulate, dump or cause or allow to 

be accumulated or dumped or cause or allow to be placed, or otherwise to 

cause or allow to exist on any lands or premises any nuisance as defined in 

Section 95.3 (g) - The accumulation of trash and debris.

Dorothy Hird, Code Enforcement Officer was present, and testified on behalf of the 

County.  Officer Hird entered into evidence photographs of the violation and testified 

that the violation remains on the property.

Joseph S. Butler Jr, the Respondent, was not present at this hearing.

MOTION BY ROBERT YOUNG, SECONDED BY DON PETERSON, TO FIND THAT 

THERE WAS A VIOLATION OF THE STATED CODE.  THE BOARD ORDERED THAT 

THE RESPONDENT SHALL CORRECT THE VIOLATION ON OR BEFORE 

DECEMBER 16, 2016; AND IF THE RESPONDENT DOES NOT COMPLY WITH THIS 

ORDER, A FINE OF $100.00 PER DAY WILL BE IMPOSED THEREAFTER.  The 

motion CARRIED by the following vote:

Aye: Chairman Russ Hauck, Dennis Warren, Donald Peterson, Amy Guilfoyle, 

James Vickaryous, and Robert Young

6 - 

Excused: Mike Bass1 - 

16-90-CEB 

New

JOSEPH S. BUTLER JR

818 LAKE MARION DR., ALTAMONTE SPRINGS, FL 32701

(Commission District 4)

Tax Parcel ID # 12-21-29-5BD-3800-0270

Code Enforcement Officer:  Dorothy Hird

Violation:  

1.  Seminole County Code, Chapter 95, Sec. 95.4, as defined in Sec. 95.3 (h)

It shall be unlawful for any person to accumulate, dump or cause or allow to 

be accumulated or dumped or cause or allow to be placed, or otherwise to 

cause or allow to exist on any lands or premises any nuisance as defined in 

Section 95.3 (h) - Any weed growth, grass growth, undergrowth or dead or 

living vegetative matter that is growing in an uncontrolled manner or is not 

regularly maintained, and is in excess of eight (8) inches in height as 

measured from the soil level.

Dorothy Hird, Code Enforcement Officer was present, and testified on behalf of the 

Page 9SEMINOLE COUNTY GOVERNMENT



December 1, 2016Code Enforcement Board Meeting Minutes (Final) - Final

County.  Officer Hird entered into evidence photographs of the violation and testified 

that the violation on the property has been corrected.  She would like the Board to 

issue the Respondent an Order to refrain from repeating this violation after December 

8, 2016.

Joseph S. Butler Jr, the Respondent, was not present at this hearing.

MOTION BY DON PETERSON, SECONDED BY AMY GUILFOYLE, TO FIND THAT 

THERE WAS A VIOLATION OF THE STATED CODE AND THAT THE VIOLATION 

WAS CORRECTED ON OR BEFORE DECEMBER 1, 2016.   THE BOARD FURTHER 

ORDERED THAT IF THE RESPONDENT REPEATS THE VIOLATION AFTER 

DECEMBER 8, 2016, A FINE OF $50.00 PER DAY WILL BEGIN TO ACCRUE FOR 

EACH DAY THE VIOLATION RECURS.  The motion CARRIED by the following 

vote:

Aye: Chairman Russ Hauck, Dennis Warren, Donald Peterson, Amy Guilfoyle, 

James Vickaryous, and Robert Young

6 - 

Excused: Mike Bass1 - 

16-72-CEB 

Lien Req

JERMAUDE DILWORTH, MARGO

110 DESOTO AVE., ALTAMONTE SPRINGS, FL 32701

(Commission District 4)

Tax Parcel ID # 07-21-30-505-0B00-0140

Code Enforcement Officer:  Dorothy Hird

Violation:  

1.  Seminole County Code, Chapter 95, Sec. 95.4, as defined in Sec. 95.3 (l)

It shall be unlawful for any person to accumulate, dump or cause or allow to 

be accumulated or dumped or cause or allow to be placed, or otherwise to 

cause or allow to exist on any lands or premises any nuisance as defined in 

Section 95.3 (l) - Junked, abandoned and/or non-operating vehicle(s) not kept 

within an enclosed garage or attached carport.

This case was originally heard by the Board on August 25, 2016, and an 

Order was entered giving the Respondents a compliance date of September 

9, 2016.  An Affidavit of Non-Compliance was filed by the Code Enforcement 

Officer after re-inspection on September 12, 2016.

This case was continued until December 1, 2016.

This Property is NOT in compliance at this time.

RECOMMENDATION:  The Board issue an Order imposing a lien in the 

amount of $8,300.00, for 83 days of non-compliance from September 10, 

2016, through and including December 1, 2016, at $100.00 per day, and the 

fine shall continue to accrue at $100.00 per day, for each day the violation 

continues or is repeated past December 1, 2016.

Dorothy Hird, Code Enforcement Officer was present, and testified on behalf of the 

County.   Officer Hird explained the history of the case.  She stated that she has been 

in contact with the Respondents who explained they were having issues with the title to 

the vehicle and are unable to have it removed.  Officer Hird stated that she would have 

Page 10SEMINOLE COUNTY GOVERNMENT



December 1, 2016Code Enforcement Board Meeting Minutes (Final) - Final

no objections if the Board were to deny the lien request at this time and continue the 

case. 

Chairman Russ Hauck confirmed with Officer Hird that the fine would continue to 

accrue on a daily basis.

Dennis Warren asked Officer Hird if she knew why the Respondents were not here and 

she replied that she did not.

Robert Young asked Officer Hird if she knew how the Respondents planned to get the 

paperwork for the vehicle and she stated that she did not know.

MOTION BY DON PETERSON, SECONDED BY AMY GUILFOYLE, TO DENY THE 

LIEN REQUEST AND TABLE THE REQUEST UNTIL THE JANUARY 26, 2017 

HEARING.

The motion CARRIED by the following vote:

Aye: Chairman Russ Hauck, Dennis Warren, Donald Peterson, Amy Guilfoyle, 

James Vickaryous, and Robert Young

6 - 

Excused: Mike Bass1 - 

CASES NOT HEARD BY THE BOARD

16-96-CEB 

Comp Prior

Complied Prior

ANDREW & JULIE HOOPPER

305 FAIRMONT DR., SANFORD, FL 32773

(Commission District 2)

Tax Parcel ID # 14-20-30-501-0E00-0130

Code Enforcement Officer:  Vincent Bavaro

Violation:  

1.  Seminole County Code, Chapter 95, Sec. 95.4, as defined in Sec. 95.3 (p)

It shall be unlawful for any person to accumulate, dump or cause or allow to 

be accumulated or dumped or cause or allow to be placed, or otherwise to 

cause or allow to exist on any lands or premises any nuisance as defined in 

Section 95.3 (p) - Any other objectionable, unsightly, or unsanitary matter, 

substance, or material tending by its existence and/or accumulation to 

endanger or adversely affect the health, safety, lives, and/or welfare of the 

citizens of the county.

16-91-CEB 

Comp Prior

Complied Piror

KEVIN G. SULLIVAN

341 E CITRUS ST., ALTAMONTE SPRINGS, FL 32701

(Commission District 3)

Tax Parcel ID # 11-21-29-517-0B00-0360

Code Enforcement Officer:  Dorothy Hird

Page 11SEMINOLE COUNTY GOVERNMENT



December 1, 2016Code Enforcement Board Meeting Minutes (Final) - Final

Violation:  

1.  Seminole County Land Development Code, Chapter 30, Sec.30.1350

No trucks having a rated load limit of more than two (2) tons or having more 

than two (2) axles may be parked or stored in any residentially zoned area.

16-99-CEB 

Comp Prior

Complied Prior 

KEVIN KLEPPE

1921 S RONALD REAGAN BLVD, ALTAMONTE SPRINGS, FL 

32701

(Commission District 4)

Tax Parcel ID # 07-21-30-510-0A00-0130

Code Enforcement Officer:  Dorothy Hird

Violation:  

1.  Seminole County Code, Chapter 95, Sec. 95.4, as defined in Sec. 95.3 (l)

It shall be unlawful for any person to accumulate, dump or cause or allow to 

be accumulated or dumped or cause or allow to be placed, or otherwise to 

cause or allow to exist on any lands or premises any nuisance as defined in 

Section 95.3 (l) - Junked, abandoned and/or non-operating vehicle(s) not kept 

within an enclosed garage or attached carport.

16-98-CEB 

Comp Prior

Complied Prior

REBECCA WELCH

126 OAK ST., ALTAMONTE SPRINGS, FL 32714

(Commission District 3)

Tax Parcel ID # 03-21-29-509-0000-0110

Code Enforcement Officer:  Dorothy Hird

Violation:  

1.  Seminole County Code, Chapter 95, Sec. 95.4, as defined in Sec. 95.3 (h)

It shall be unlawful for any person to accumulate, dump or cause or allow to 

be accumulated or dumped or cause or allow to be placed, or otherwise to 

cause or allow to exist on any lands or premises any nuisance as defined in 

Section 95.3 (h) - Any weed growth, grass growth, undergrowth or dead or 

living vegetative matter that is growing in an uncontrolled manner or is not 

regularly maintained, and is in excess of eight (8) inches in height as 

measured from the soil level.

Page 12SEMINOLE COUNTY GOVERNMENT



December 1, 2016Code Enforcement Board Meeting Minutes (Final) - Final

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF:  October 27, 2016VI

MOTION BY DENNIS WARREN, SECONDED BY ROBERT YOUNG, TO APPROVE 

THE MINUTES FROM THE MEETING OF OCTOBER 27, 2016.    The motion 

CARRIED by the following vote:

Aye: Chairman Russ Hauck, Dennis Warren, Donald Peterson, Amy Guilfoyle, 

James Vickaryous, and Robert Young

6 - 

Excused: Mike Bass1 - 

CONFIRMATION DATE OF NEXT MEETING:  January 26, 2017VII

OTHER BUSINESS:  Approve 2017 meeting scheduleVIII

MOTION BY JIM VICKARYOUS, SECONDED BY AMY GUILFOYLE, TO APPROVE 

THE 2017 CODE ENFORCEMENT BOARD MEETING SCHEDULE.    The motion 

CARRIED by the following vote:

Aye: Chairman Russ Hauck, Dennis Warren, Donald Peterson, Amy Guilfoyle, 

James Vickaryous, and Robert Young

6 - 

Excused: Mike Bass1 - 

Chairman Russ Hauck annoucement

Chairman Russ Hauck advised the Board that his Code Enforcement Board Term 

expires in January 2017, and he will be stepping down.  He stated that he would be 

willing to serve past January 2017, if needed, until someone new has been appointed.

ADJOURNX

There being no further discussion, this meeting was adjourned at 2:48 P.M.

Respectfully Submitted:

_________________________                         _________________________

Patricia A. Hughes, Clerk                                 Dennis Warren

Code Enforcement Board                                Acting Chairman

Page 13SEMINOLE COUNTY GOVERNMENT


